CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING

Cathedral Pines Community Center
Monday, February 12, 2018
2:00 P.M.
Board of Directors
Bart Atkinson, President Term Expires May 2020
Dan Potter Term Expires May 2020
Jeff Parker Term Expires May 2018
Jason Lee Courtright Term Expires May 2018
Gregg Cawlfield Term Expires May 2018
AGEND

1. Call to Order

2. Declaration of QuorunyDirector Qualifications/Reaffirmation of Disclosures

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Consent Agenda Items (These items are considered to be routine and will be approved by one motion. There
will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested, in which event, the item will be removed from

the Consent Agenda and considered in the Regular Agenda)
a, Approval of Board Meeting Minutes from the January 8, 2018 Meeting (attached)
b. Acceptance of Unandited Financial Statements as of January 31, 2018, the schedule of cash
position updated as of January 31, 2018 and bank statements (attached)
c. Ratify signature on Snow Removal Contract (attached)

5. Consideration of items removed from Consent Agenda

6. Management Matters
a. Transition of management progress
b. Contract Review - Landscape maintenance, Community Center management
¢. Update on Lodge and barn well status, Lodge landscape and trail cleanup
d. District Website update — launch projected on February 15, 2018
e. SDA membership

7. Financial Matters
a. Approval of Payables for the Period Ending February 12, 2018 in the amount of $9,347.80

8. Legal Matters
a. Election Update

9. Public Comment (Jtems Not on the Agenda Only. Comments limited to 3 minutes per person and taken in
Order In Which They Appear on Sign-Up Sheet)

10. Other Business
a. Next Meeting — March 12, 2018 at 2:00 PM

11. Adjournment

Page | 1



WALKER SCHOCLER
DISTRICT MANAGERS

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
HELD JANUARY 8, 2017
AT 2:00 P.M.

Pursuant to posted notice, the special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cathedral Pines
Metropolitan District was held on Monday, January 8 at 2 p.m., at 13977 Milam Rd., Colorado Springs,

CO.

Attendance In attendance were Directors: Also in attendance were:
Bart Atkinson, President Kevin Walker, Walker Schooler District
Dan Potter Management (WSDM)
Jeff Parker Jacqueline Armendariz, WSDM
Jason Lee Courtright Jamie Adams, Warren Management
Gregg Cawlfield Peter M. Susemihl, District Counsel

1. Call to Order:
President Atkinson called the meeting to order at 2:03 p.m.

2. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/Reaffirmation of Disclosures:

President Atkinson confirmed a quorum.

3. Approval of the Agenda:

4. Consent Agenda Items:
a. Approval of Board Meeting minutes from the December 11, 2017

Director Courtright corrected the spelling of his last name and Director Cawlfield corrected the
spelling of his first name in the Board Meeting minutes from the December 11, 2017.

b. Acceptance of Unaudited Financial Statements and the schedule of cash position both updated as
of December 31, 2017 and bank statements - Mr. Walker reported WSDM was able to present
unaudited materials dated through Dec. 31, 2017. Mr. Walker added that the statements give a
sense of what happened last year and the District’s standing as of Dec. 31, 2017. President
Atkinson noted as a positive that the district’s cash on hand was improved due to tax payments in
December. The Board discussed the audit for 2016 completed by Biggs Kofford and directed Mr.
Walker to collect additional quotes for the 2017 audit to consider at its next meeting. Mr. Walker
said the next audit is not due until the end of July and will begin in February/March.

President Atkinson made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Director Courtright seconded
the motion. The motion passed with Director Potter and Director Parker voting no.



5. Consideration of items removed from Consent Agenda

There were no items removed from the consent agenda.

6. Management Matters:
a. Transition of management progress - Mr. Walker reported he met several times with President

Atkinson, received a tour and received a District workbook with basic data such as operations,
contracts, and equipment list. Mr. Walker also reported that WSDM has copies of the District’s
insurance documents as well as electronic financial records. Mr. Walker said WSDM is in receipt
the District’s logins for banking, state reporting, etc. Mr. Walker had met with Jamie Adams had
met to discuss how they would work together going forward. President Atkinson said he tock Ms.
Adams on a tour of all the well sites and pump sites to explain operations and street valves and
maps as well as how to turn water off and on, all contact information for the wells, irrigation and

landscape to facilitate operations.

b. Review of existing contracts - The Board discussed existing contracts for snow removal,
community center management, management of operations agreement with Warren Management

and landscape maintenance.

Mr. Walker reported that the contract for snow removal lacks detail including indemnifications,
insurance coverages, liabilities among the contractor, District and County, required appropriation,
contract renewal and remedies. Mr. Walker added that the invoice to pay the contractor was due
the first week of January and the contractor had been made aware of a delay. The Board then
discussed the County’s permission to plow public streets, the pricing structure for this contract
and whether or not to proceed with the contract and, if so, how. President Atkinson said additional
plowings were requested by the residents which was taken on by the District. Mr. Walker said
that a District does not usually service public streets; Mr. Susemih! added that some HOAs do
carry out road maintenance, such as Gold Hill Mesa, under agreement with the jurisdiction. Mr.
Walker also said in regard to pricing structure that it is variable, depending on amount of snow
fall location of equipment, etc. Mr. Susemihl suggested that the contractor be made aware that
there is an issue with multi-year contracts, which must include a clause that it is subject to annual

appropriation.

The Board directed Mr. Walker to meet with the contractor to discuss a new contract and to
renegotiate terms and pricing. The Board also said the contractor’s existing invoice should not be

paid until the contract is renegotiated.

Mr. Walker reported the contract for tree improvements was signed last month and subject to
appropriations. Mr. Walker added that the same contractor was in place to finish the remaining
eight houses finished without trees and finishing lots. The Board discussed the importance of
matching color, size and shape as well as fees charged for monuments,

Director Potter motioned to ratify the contract with a second from President Atkinson. The motion
passed with Director Courtright voting nay.

The Board discussed the community center management agreement. Mr. Walker reported that the
operations agreement was signed with Warren Management in December and needs only a minor
revision to address an indemnification clause to make clear the District is not waiving its
sovereign immunity. Ms. Adams asked the Board to consider dropping or reducing the $10,000
cost share paid to the District by the HOA due to a tight HOA budget. The Board discussed



changing this cost to the HOA, which is related to shared maintenance around the monuments.
Mr. Walker said the Board is able to change its budget and Mr. Susemihl added that the budget
may be amended at the end of the year. The Board also discussed the contract for an irrigation
system, mowing and fertilizing, which Mr. Walker said was signed last year. Mr. Walker said he
recommends Warren review prices instead of authorizing rebidding and that a report on this be
presented at the Board’s next meeting in February.

Director Potter made a motion to allow the HOA to no longer remit $10,000 to the District.
Director Parker seconded the motion. The motion passed with Director Courtright abstaining,

Director Potter motioned to also-ratify the Warren Management contract subject to an additional
indemnification as recommended by Mr. Susemihl. Director Parker seconded the motion. The

motion passed unanimously.

c. Update on roles and responsibilities between District and HOA - Mr. Walker reported the District
and HOA are working fine together and that there are no specific issues between the two.

d. District Website - Mr. Walker reported that there is currently no District website and that the state
offers a platform which is currently used by several other WSDM district clients for free. Mr.
Walker also said the HOA could be linked to District site. Director Potter motioned to authorize
the creation of a District website on this platform. Director Cawlfield seconded the motion. The

motion passed unanimously.

€. SDA Membership - Mr. Walker reported he confirmed the District does not have a Special District
Association membership. Mr. Walker also said most Districts have a SDA membership for the
insurance offered through the organization. Mr. Walker added that he would obtain an insurance

quote and present that at the next meeting in February.

7. Financial Matters:
a. Review of adopted budget as approved and draft budget message - Mr. Walker said the budget

remained the same as presented at the last meeting. Mr. Walker explained the budget did not
include money from FEMA and that if it is counted as revenue there might be a question if it isn’t
received. President Atkinson said a request to meet with FEMA to reach closure has been made
four times, but there has been no response. President Atkinson added he would continue to

address the issue.

b. Approval of Payables for the Period Ending January 5, 2018 - Mr. Walker reported on payables
for Fire Tree Corporation, the snow removal contract and WSDM. Mr. Walker noted the payable
for the plowing would be held as directed by the Board previously during the meeting. Director
Courtright made a motion to approve the payables, which was seconded by President Atkinson.
The motion passed with Director Potter abstaining.

8. Legal Matters:
a. Election Schedule - Mr. Walker informed the Board of the election schedule and explained self-

nomination forms should be submitted by March 2. Mr. Susemihl said the call for election would
be published later in January.

9. Public Comment:
There were no public comments.




10. Other Business:
a. Next Meeting
February 12, 2018 at 2 p.m.

11. Adjournment:
The meeting was adjourned at 3:57 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

By: Kevin Walker, District Manager

THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL NOVEMBER 8§, 2017 MINUTES OF THE
VENTANA METROPOLITAN DISTRICT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SIGNING BELOW:

Bart Atkinson, President

Dan Potter, Director

Jeff Parker, Director

Jason Lee Courtright, Director

Gregg Cawlfield, Director




4:01 PM CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
02/09/18 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January 1 through February 12, 2018

Jan 1-Feb 12,18

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
GF INCOME
Rental Income - Lodge Events 1,870.00
Rental Income - Sales Office 560.00
Total GF INCOME 2,430.00
Total income 2,430.00
Gross Profit 2,430.00
Expense
GF EXPENSES
Cieaning 100.00
Event Exp (adv/bkg/einfhst) 2,029.95
Event Supplies 120.78
Insurance 1,179.75
Landscape Maintenance 145.00
Legal Fees 2,380.00
Maintenance Management 1,800.00
Management Expense 2,000.00
Security 317.01
Snow Removal 8,000.00
Telephone 224,18
Trash 445.01
Utilitles 2,048.71
Total GF EXPENSES 20,790.39
Total Expense 20,790.39
Net Ordinary Income -18,360.39
-18,360.39

Net Income

Page 1




4:01PM CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
02/09/18 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of February 12, 2018
Feb 12,18
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Checking - General Fund 10,570.18
MM - CSafe Bond Fund UMB 0.53
MM - Debt Svc Fund 109,800.83
Total Checking/Savings 120,371.54
Other Current Assets
Prop Tax Rec - Debt Svec 313,363.00
Prop Tax Ree - Gnl Fund 144,141.00
Total Other Current Assets 457,504.00
Total Current Assets 577,875.54
Fixed Assets
Community Center
Accum Depreciation -443,039.00
Original Cost 1,328,384.00
Total Community Center 885,345.00
Equipment
Accurn Depreciation -1,785.00
Equipment - Other 13,922.00
Total Equipment 12,167.00
Parks, Trails & Monument
Accum Depreciation -448,680.00
Original Cost 897,354.77
Total Parks, Trails & Monument 448 674.77
Total Fixed Assets 1,346,186.77
TOTAL ASSETS 1,924,062.31
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable (A/P) 12,679.29
Total Accounts Payabls 12,679.29
Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Interest - DSve 18,737.67
Deferred Prop Tax - DSve 313,363.00
Deferred Prop Tax - Gnl 144,141.00
Deposits- Lodge Events 29,950.00
Total Other Current Liabillties 506,191.67
Total Current Liabilities 518,870.96
Long Term Liabilities
Bonds Payable 2016
Bond Premium 2016
AJA Bond Premium 2016 -26,322.18
Bond Premium 2016 - Other 414,881.70
388,559.52

Total Bond Premium 2016

Page 1




4:01 PM CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
02/09/18 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of February 12, 2018
Feb 12, 18
Bonds Payable 2016 - Other 4,660,000.00
Total Bonds Payable 2016 5,048,559.52
Total Long Term Liabilities 5,048,559.52
Total Liabilities 5,567,430.48
Equity
Debt Sve / Cap Proj Funds 155,805.00
General Fund-Restricted 8,054.00
General Fund-Unrestricted 33,873.00
Gov't Wide Fund Balance -3,741,036.79
Retained Earnings -81,702.99
Net Income -18,360.39
Total Equity -3,643,368.17
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,924,062.31

Page 2




| ebeyq
000 000 000 000 (patejop) 500 - saseysung
000 000 000 000 {pe3919p) SO0 - 51909 Lo
00'0 000 o000 000 1816p) 09 - Aiaajjep 3 JyBrouy
000 000 o000 000 {pa1219p) 509 - Joge) Jo 3s0
000 000 000 000 PIog SPO05) J0 1509
Plog spoog jo 3e00
00019242 ¥ L1616 00°08r'Z ¥£'216'16 00°0EY'Z awoy| [ejo)
000 000 000 000 (roe18p) swoou| pezuoBajeosun
000 000 000 000 swoou| pazuofisjeoun
000 000 000 000 U] sugjsuel]
00"000'G1 LL68L' L 000 L4s8L') 000 awoau| Jonpoud jo sajeg
000 000 000 000 {pe3eiep) saouemoly-spunjay
00°019'264 €9°'L61'06 000’z £9'1L61'06 00°0Er' JNOINI 49 [ejoL
000 000 000 000 110 - INODNI 49
00°000'05 GEZS6'S 000 G8'266°G 00'0 sexe] diysieumg syjoedg
00°09g'c 00°00v 00°095 00007 00°095 U0 SIES - AWOIU| [EJuey
00°000'0Z1 L2GBE'F) 00°048't (W) 000281 sjuang abpo - swoou) [gjuey
00°0 000 000 000 Juawassy soueusuIE
000 o000 000 00'0 JUSWISINQUISY SoUBINSU|
000 000 000 000 juawesunquiiey uoiSoIF/24114 YOH
00°096'6 L2'G681'L 000 LLG8LL 000 quusy esuadxs vOH
00°00%' 1S¥ GEZSP'S 000 GEZGP'¥S 000 anuaAsy xe] doid 49
00°066 98’ /L1 o000 ag'z1LL 000 eLLoIU| JSaIBIU| 4D
00°006'G11 G9'L6L'EL 000 S9/6L'EL 000 Spung yinad
JWODNI 4D
000 000 000 00°G FWOOINI §q IeoL
000 000 00'0 000 13410 - INODNI Sa
000 000 000 000 saxe] dysisump aplasds
000 000 000 000 enueaay xe) doid sq
000 000 000 000 aWodu| Jsaunu| g
000 00'0 000 000 910z spaadold pueq
FWODNI ST
000 000 000 000 {(pejojep) usaib sjunoosiq
000 000 000 000 {ps1ajep) sjunoasig
000 000 000 000 swodu| esuedx3 sjqeyg
awodut
asuadx3owoou Aleuipig
196png [enuuy 1bpng qLA 81 ‘zh gedq - | uep whpng 81 ‘2L 994~ | uer

8102 ‘2L Aenugag yBnoays | Arenuep siseg [enioay
oduerWLIOlI9d uwm_uzm $S0T B }J1joid 81160120
10111S1a NYLINOdOYLIW S3NId IVHA3HLYD Nd 1%



z ebeyq
000 000 000 000 eBRIN g uopeIciSaY poo|d/eaid [ej0)
000 000 000 000 1o - eBRIw ' uonesoisey peojdeuld
000 000 000 0o feyuay dinb3 poojdeany
efnIN '2 uonelo)SeYy poojL/aIy
000 2.021 000 8.°0Z1 sel|ddng juoag
00°000'0F ¥6°19L'Y G6'62Z0'C Y619,V G6'620'C {(1syuj2/Byq/ape) dx3 Jusag
002912 GE'4ST 000 i L1 000 {saunseas ) }49 ea4 uopasijon
000002 90882 00°00L 90’82 00001 Bulueejp
00°0€ 26¢ 000 15°¢ 000 sabieys yueg
0070622 59226 000 69226 00°0 Jpny
0000021 99°ZrL'e 000 o8'ZrL'Ee 00°0 Bupunosay
SASNIdX3 49
000 000 000 000 {(pejejep) Lealjaq 2 Bl
00°0 oo 000 000 {pejojep) suonduasqng g sang
00°'€10'g8Z 0€'282'%E 000 0g'/82'vE 000 SISNIdX3 84 a0l
000 000 000 000 Jaig - SISNIAJXA Sa
00°00% Go'ly 000 G9'lt 000 s884 2dsNn1L
00'€16'222 0g'/£5'02 000 0£°2£5'92 000 $a esuadixg jsesequ|
000 000 000 000 Sjuld ueoT Jedojersq
000 000 ¢[0 )] 0070 9Uenss| puog Jo 3509
00'004'Y 6t'6G5 000 6¥'655 000 {saunsead) ) sa ead ucnssjon
00°000'09 98'ZrL'L 000 o8ZrL'L 000 sjwd [edidung puog
S3ASNIXI Sq
000 000 000 00'0 {paejap) s99) B suoissILIWOD
000 000 000 00'0 SISNIIX3 49 [e0L
000 00'0 000 000 4810 - SIASNIJXI 49
000 000 000 000 {ze}uoneisaideq
SASNIdXT 42
000 00’0 000 000 (pejelep) s39eq peg
00 000 000 000 (pejeiep) Bujspuanpy
000 000 000 000 SINIWLSNray eoL
000 00'0 000 000 19410 - SLNIWLSNrav
000 000 00°0 000 rav suaswied ueo Jedojeasq
SINJFWisnrav
asuadxg
00°019'242 ¥e'LL6'16 00°0eb'Z ¥ L6'16 000E¥'e Jyoud sS0l5
00 000 000 000 SO0 lejoL
000 000 000 000 ap) $909 - sjeuael ¢ sanddng
000 000 000 000 (pajejep) SO0 - s10y9enUOIGNS
196png [enuuy 1ebpng gLA 8} ‘ZTL qed - | uep jeBpng 8L ‘Z} qad - | uer

8102 ‘Z) Areniqed ybnoay) | Arenuep s|seg [enIaoy
aduewIouad J9bpng sso Q Jjoid 81/60/20
1ORILSIA NYLITOdOYLIN SANId TYHAIHLYD Wd €17



¢ efieg
000 000 000 000 sasuadx3 [joshed [0l
000 000 00'0 00'0 4910 - sesuedx3 |josfed
000 000 000 000 sabe
sesuadx3 |jolheg
000 000 00°0 000 $0D 82IAIGG SNoBUE||30SIN JOYIQ
000 000 00°0 000 2j3jap) JuswuleI2)Ug pue S[eap
000 000 000 000 {p=3919p) s|eu=rel qor
000 000 000 000 {pajajep) Anfier - @oueinsu|
000 000 000 000 palsiep) Alliqesiq - asueinsu)
00°/12'282 #¥'086'9E 6£°062'02 ¥ 0E6'0E 62064'02 SIASNAJXI 49 [ej0l,
00'0 000 00'0 000 N0 - SASNILXH 49
000 000 000 000 (pe3ajap) sebep
00°000'GE £9°99L°p LL8P0'T £9'991L'r L2 8P0'E sanINn
00°000's 02665 OGP 0Z S65 LO'ShY ysel)
0005t LE09L 8lvez 12091 8lLvZe auoydejay
00000°gL LLGee'y 00°000'8 LL'S8E'Y 00°000'8 leaowiay moug
00°000'¢ p1ice 1021 pLice LO°ZLE funseg
00°000'sH P128E'S 000 Pl i6e's 000 asuBusiulel ' sredey
000 000 000 000 {1Z1L}sasuedxz jjoifed [ejoL
000 000 000 000 dayzo - {1z 1}sesuadxg jjoakey
000 000 000 000 safizp
000 000 000 000 sabep Buiddiyoresowey sa1)
000 000 000 000 soxe]
000 000 00'0 0070 sabepy vIN34
000 00°0 00'0 00°0 safiepn yosyo yagig
{)z1}sesuadxy jjoikey
000 000 000 000 (pajalep) sesuadxa xe| u/g
00°6Z6°L £1'62¢ 000 gl6zz 00'0 sesuadx3 910
00°000'62 SeEsh'e 000002 GEZGH'E 00°000°2 asuadx3 Juswebeueyy
000 00°008'L 000 00°008°L Juswabeuely esueusjure
000 000 000 000 538 'g 9sUAII
00°000'E #1215 0008t ¥ 26 00°08€'2 s0a4 [efie
00°000'59 90'8EL'L 00°Svl 00'8¢cL' s 00'stlL gaueudujel sdesspue
000 000 000 000 49 asuadx3 3sesany
00°000'9} 08'¥06'| GLBLL'L 08'v06°L SLELL'L eaueINsU|
1efipng [enuuy 196png aiA 8} ‘7L 994 - | uep ja6png 8L ‘ZI 9od - | uer
8102 ‘21 Arenuqag ybnoayy | aenuep siseq [enisay
wu:m:._._o..—._eﬂ_ awm_usm S$S0T % jijoid 8L/60/c0

1JI41S10 NV1ITOdOYLIW SINId TVHAIHLYD fid Slv



t abieq
00°08¢£°Z61 0969202 6€°09¢'8L- 09'68.'02 6£'09€°g)-

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 00'0 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

00'0 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

00’0 00°0 000 000

000 000 000 000
00°08€'Z61 09'652'02 BE'09E'8)- 09'6862'02 6€'09¢'g1L-
00'0£2'085 | 1AV 6E°062'02 YLLLT'LL 6£°06L'02

00°0 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 00’0 000 00'0

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 00°0 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

00D 00’0 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 00D 00'0 000

3ebpng enuuy 19Bpng al1A 8l "2} 9ed - | uep jefipng 8l ‘ZL 994 - | uep

aw

BWOIU| Jay

0JU] 18N
0 19N

esuadx3 Joyip 230

sajouedarasiq uonepouosay
Sjejap) suaWIBIILE B Salleuay
ap) ssuadxg snoesuejaosiy 1810
esuadx3 snoeue|jeasiy 1830
(pe)ajap) snosueljaasiy
uonevasdag

uoneziowy

asuadxsy Japo

BWODU| JBYIQ [B301

P213jep) swoou ojoplod 190
{pe19jep) swoou| Aiewpag Jeyip
aLoU| 8v4 aje]

{(paeiep) petueg ysaiaqu)

80| JBUID
asuadxg/owoau| Jag

awoou| Areuips

asuedxz |Rj0]

{pe1a|ap) asuadxgy pazuoBejesun
asuadx3g pezuofisjesup

dx3 juewded g yses payddeun
{pe1o|op) sieeiy joaes),

(pe1ajap) PARIL

NG susjsued)

(pejejep) sjoo}

(p=y910p) sesue ¥ soxe L
{p=12iop) seddng

(perojep) suojoenUOIgNG
{pajajep) Bunuiid ¢ Lsuonelg

} esuadxa fsoajjep pue Buiddiyg
(pejelep) asear Jo jusy
SBSEYdINng

(p=3319p) sesuadxg [josheq

O 18N

810z ‘21 Arenuqo4 yBnoayy | Kienuep
IJuewlollad __.wm_u_._m $S07 ¥ }Jjoid

LORI1SIA NVLITOdON1IIN S3NId TVNAIHLYD

siseg

leniooy
8L160/Z0

Nd €1¥



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
(Snow Removal Services)

This INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, including any and all exhibits
attached hereto (the “Agreement™), is entered into as of the  day of , 2018
by and between CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District™), and John L.
Frerichs (the “Contractor”). The District and the Contractor are referred to herein individually as

a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions
of §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. for the purpose of constructing, financing, operating and
maintaining certain public facilities and improvements for itself, its taxpayers, residents and users;

and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is empowered to enter
into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(i), C.R.S., the District is empowered to appoint,
hire and retain agents, employees, engineers and attorneys; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain services as are
needed by the District to serve the property within and without its boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented that it has the professional experience, skill
and resources to perform the services, as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations set forth
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as

follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

L. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The Contractor shall perform the services described in
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Services™): (a) in a
first~class manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using the degree of skill and knowledge
customarily employed by other professionals performing similar services in the area of the
District; (b) within the time period and pursuant to the Scope of Services specified in said
Exhibit A; (c) in such a manner as to minimize any annoyance, interference or disruption to the
residents, tenants, occupants and invitees within the District; and (d) in compliance with all
applicable federal, state, county and local or municipal body or agency statutes, ordinances and
regulations, including, without limitation, any licensing, bonding, and permit requirements, and
including without limitation, any such laws relating to storage, use or disposal of hazardous




wastes, substances or materials. Exhibit A may take any form, including forms which may include
price and payment terms. In the event of any conflict between terms set forth in the body of this
Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, the terms in the body of this Agreement shall govern.
Contractor shall have no right or authority, express or implied, to take any action, expend any sum,
incur any obligation, or otherwise obligate the District in any manner whatsoever, except to the

extent specifically provided in this Agreement.

2. TERM/RENEWAL. This Agreement shall be effective as of the dated date
hereof and shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) termination pursuant to Section 18
hereof; (ii) compietion of the Services: or (iii) December 31, 20. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
unless terminated pursuant to (i), (i) or (iii), above, or unless the District determines not to
appropriate funds for this Agreement for the next succeeding year, this Agreement shall
automatically renew for each succeeding year for an additional one (1) year term commencing
Jamuary 1 of the next succeeding year.

3. REPAIRS/CLAIMS. The Contractor shall notify the District immediately of any
and all damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties. In
addition, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District of all potential claims of which it
becomes aware. The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising
all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Services and shall provide all
reasonable protection to prevent damage or injury to persons and property, including any
material and equipment related to the Services, whether in storage on or off site, under the care,
custody, or control of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors.

4. GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.

a. The Contractor has by careful examination ascertained: (i) the nature and
location of the Services; (ii) the configuration of the ground on which the Services are to be
performed; (iii) the character, quality, and quantity of the labor, materials, equipment and facilities
necessary to complete the Services; (iv) the general and local conditions pertaining to the Services;
and (v) all other matters which in any way may affect the performance of the Services by the
Contractor. Contractor enters into this Agreement solely because of the results of such examination
and not because of any representations pertaining to the Services or the provision thereof made to it
by the District or any agent of the District and not contained in this Agreement. The Contractor
represents that it has or shall acquire the capacity and the professional experience and skill to
perform the Services and that the Services shall be performed in accordance with the standards of
care, skill and diligence provided by competent professionals who perform services of a similar
nature to those specified in this Agreement.

b. The Services of the Contractor shall be undertaken and completed to assure
their expeditious completion in light of the purposes of this Agreement. If performance of the
Services by the Contractor is delayed due to factors beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control, or
if conditions of the scope or type of services are expected to change, Contractor shall give timely
notice to the District of such a delay or change and receive an equitable adjustment of time and/or
compensation, as negotiated between the Parties.




c. The Services provided under this Agreement shall be adequate and
sufficient for the intended purposes and shall be completed in a good and workmanlike manner.

d. The Contractor declares that it has complied with all Federal, State and local
laws, rules, regulations, ordinances and/or similar directives regarding business permits, certificates
and licenses that are required to provide the Services under this Agreement.

€. The responsibilities and obligations of the Contractor under this
Agreement shall not be relieved or affected in any respect by the presence of any agent,
consultant, sub-consultant or employee of the District. Review, acceptance or approval by the
District of the Services performed or any documents prepared by the Contractor shall not relieve
the Contractor of any responsibility for deficiencies, omissions or errors in said Services or
documents, nor shall it be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or
of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.

5. COMPENSATION AND INVOICES.

a. Compensation. Compensation for the Services provided under this
Agreement shall be in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.
The Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement and
shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or compensation except as provided in Exhibit A of this

Agreement.

b. Invoices. Invoices for the Services shall be submitted 30 days prior to the
due date of the invoice.

The District shall be charged only compensation as described in Exhibit A.

6. TIME FOR PAYMENT. Payment for the Services shall be made by the District
within thirty (30) days of receipt of a satisfactory invoice. In the event a Board meeting is not
scheduled in time to review payment of an invoice, the Board hereby authorizes payment for
Services, subject to the appropriation and budget requirements under Section 22, without the
need for additional Board approval, so long as any payment required to be made does not exceed
the amounts appropriated for such Services as set forth in the District’s approved budget. Such
payment shall be subject to ratification at the next succeeding special or regular Board meeting.

7] INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Contractor is an independent contractor
and nothing herein shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees or agents
as employees or agents of the District. The Contractor shall have full power and authority to select
the means, manner and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without detailed
control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own employees or
subcontractors. The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained. The District shall
not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any insurance coverage or employment benefits
of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, contractors, agents,
or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not limited to: local, state or federal
income or other tax contributions, insurance contributions (e.g. FICA taxes), workers’




compensation, disability, injury, health or life insurance, professional liability insurance, errors
and omissions insurance, vacation or sick-time benefits, retirement account contributions, or any
other form of taxes, benefits or insurance. The Contractor shall be responsible for its safety, the
safety of its employees, the public and the work site in general and shall comply with all
applicable provisions of local, state and federal laws, regulations and orders affecting safety and
health, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Hezalth Act of 1970 (OSH Act).
All personnel furnished by the Contractor will be deemed employees of the Contractor and will
not for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the District, and the Contractor will
comply with all employment laws relative to such employees, including but not limited to Wage
and Hour laws, Worker Compensation Laws, Immigration Laws and OSHA-type laws. The
Contractor is not entitled to worker’s compensation benefits or unempioyment insurance

benefits, unless unemployment compensation coverage is provided by the Contractor or some

other entity other than the District, and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state

income taxes on moneys eamned pursuant to this Agreement.
8. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY / EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY. This Agreement is

subject to all applicable laws and executive orders relating to equal opportunity and non-
discrimination in employment and the Contractor represents and warrants that it will not
discriminate in its employment practices in violation of any such applicable law or executive

order.

a. The Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien
who will perform work under the public contract for services contemplated herein and will
participate in the E-Verify Program or Department Program (as defined in §8-17.5-101, C.R.S.) in
order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment
to perform work under the public contract for services contemplated herein.

b. The Contractor shall not knowingly enter into a contract with a subcontractor
that fails to certify to the Contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract
with an illegal alien to perform the services contemplated herein.

9. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE.

a. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense,
during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance coverage in the minimum amounts set forth
in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. A waiver of subrogation
and rights of recovery against the District, its directors, officers, employees and agents is
required for each coverage provided. The Commercial General Liability and Comprehensive
Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed to name the District and its respective
managers, members, officers, directors, partners and employees, as additional insured. All
coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be written as primary policies, not
contributing with and not supplemental to any coverage that the District may carry, and any
insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess. The District shall have the right
to verify or confirm, at any time, all coverage, information or representations contained herein.

b. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall
provide the District with a certificate or certificates evidencing the policies required by this




Agreement, as well as the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage, which
certificate(s) shall be attached hereto as Exhibit B-1. If the Contractor subcontracts any portion(s)
of the Services, said subcontractor(s) shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing statutory
workers® compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance and automobile
liability insurance in amounts satisfactory to the District and the Contractor. If the coverage
required expires during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide
replacement certificate(s) evidencing the continuation of the required policies.

c. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not serve to
release it from any obligations contained herein; nor shall the purchase of the required insurance
serve to limit the Contractor’s liability under any provision herein. The Contractor shall be
responsible for the payment of any deductibies on issued policies.

10. LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES. The Contractor shall not have any right or
interest in any District assets, nor any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of this
Agreement or the performance of the services contemplated herein. The Contractor, for itself,
hereby waives and releases any and all statutory or common law mechanic’s, materialmen’s or
other such lien claims, or rights to place a lien upon the District’s property or any improvements
thereon in connection with any Services performed under or in connection with this Agreement,
and the Contractor shall cause all permitted subcontractors, suppliers, materialmen, and others
claiming by, through or under the Contractor to execute similar waivers prior to commencing
any work or providing any materials in connection with the Services.

11,  INDEMNIFICATION.

a. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District and
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents and consultants, from and against
any and all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, lawsuits, damages, and expenses,
including reasonable legal expenses and attorneys’ fees, arising directly or indirectly, in whole or
in part, out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or any criminal or tortious
act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents or employees, in
connection with this Agreement and/or the Contractor’s performance of the Services or work
pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District for the
District’s own negligence. This indemnification obligation will not be limited in any way by any
limitation on the amount or types of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the
Contractor under worker’s compensation acts, disability acts or other employee benefit acts.

b. The Contractor will at all times indemnify, defend and hold the District
and its directors, officers, managers, agents and employees harmless against any liability for
claims and liens for labor performed or materials used or furnished in the performance of
Contractor’s Services, including any costs and expenses incurred in the defense of such claims
and liens, reasonable attorneys’ fees and any damages to the District resuiting from such claims
or liens. After written demand by the District, the Contractor will immediately cause the effect
of any suit or lien to be removed from the District’s property. In the event the Contractor fails to
do so, the District is authorized to use whatever means in its discretion it may deem appropriate
to cause said lien or suit to be removed or dismissed, and the costs thereof, together with




reasonable attorneys’ fees, will be immediately due and payable by the Contractor or may, at the
District’s option, be offset against any sums due and payable to Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement. In the event a suit on such claim or lien is brought, the Contractor will, at the option
of the District, defend said suit at its own cost and expense, with counsel satisfactory to the
District and will pay and satisfy any such claim, lien, or judgment as may be established by the
decision of the Court in such suit. The Contractor may litigate any such lien or suit, provided the
Contractor causes the effect thereof to be removed promptly in advance from the District’s

property.

c. This indemnity coverage shall also cover the District’s defense costs in the
event that the District, in its sole discretion, elects to provide its own defense. The District
retains the right to disapprove counsel, if any, selected by the Contractor to fulfill the foregoing
defense indemnity obligation, which right of disapproval shall not be unreasonably exercised.
Insurance coverage requirements specified herein shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of
the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation. The Contractor shall obtain, at
its own expense, any additional insurance that it deems necessary for the District’s protection in
the performance of this Agreement. This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the

expiration or termination of this Agreement.

12. ASSIGNMENT. The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or parts thereof,
or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the District. Any attempted
assignment, delegation or subcontracting of this Agreement in whole or in part with respect to
which the District has not consented, in writing, shall be null and void and of no effect

whatsoever.

13. SUB-CONTRACTORS. The Contractor is solely and fully responsible to the
District for the performance of all Services under this Agreement, whether performed by the
Contractor or a subcontractor engaged by the Contractor. The Contractor shall not subcontract
any Services without prior written approval by the District. The Contractor agrees that each and
every agreement of the Contractor with any subcontractor to perform Services under this
Agreement shall contain an indemnification provision identical to the one contained herein
holding the District harmless for the acts of the subcontractor. The Contractor further agrees that
any such subcontract shall be terminable for cause or convenience and that, unless directed
otherwise by the District, the Contractor shall immediately terminate all such subcontracts
immediately upon termination of this Agreement., Prior to commencing any Services, a
subcontractor shall provide evidence of insurance coverage to the District. The Contractor
further agrees that all such subcontracts shall provide that they may be terminated immediately
without further cost upon termination of this Agreement. Neither the District’s approval of any
subcontractors, suppliers or materialmen, nor the failure of performance thereof by such parties,
will relieve, release or affect in any manner any of the Contractor’s duties, liabilities or
obligations under this Agreement, and the Contractor will at all times be and remain fully liable.
The Contractor agrees that each of its employees, and any subcontractors, suppliers and
materialmen will be properly qualified and will use reasonable care in the performance of their

duties.




14, TERMINATION. In addition to the termination provisions contained in Section 2,
above, this Agreement may be terminated for cause or for convenience by the Contractor upon
delivery of thirty (30) days prior written notice to the District and by the District by giving the
Contractor thirty (30) days prior written notice. Due to the nature of this Contract and payment in
expectation of the services rendered in the future, termination by the Contractor shall require the
Contract to retum the pro rata share of payment already received. Should either Party to this
Agreement be declared bankrupt, make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or commit a
substantial and material breach of this Agreement in the view of the other Party, said other Party
shall be excused from rendering or accepting any further performance under this Agreement. In the
event of termination by either Party hereto, the Contractor shall cooperate with the District to ensure
a timely and efficient transition of all work and work product to the District or its designees. All
time, fees and costs associated with such transition shall not be billed by the Contractor to the

District.

15. DEFAULT. If either Party fails to perform in accordance with the terms, covenants
and conditions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default of any of the terms of this Agreement,
the non-defaulting party shall deliver written notice to the defaulting party of the default, at the
address specified in Section 16 below, and the defaulting party will have fifteen (15) days from
and after receipt of the notice to cure the default. If the default is not of a type which can be
cured within such fifteen (15)-day period and the defaulting party gives written notice to the non-
defaulting party within such fifteen (15)-day period that it is actively and diligently pursuing a
cure, the defaulting party will have a reasonable period of time given the nature of the default
following the end of the fifteen (15)-day period to cure the default, provided that the defauiting
party is at all times within the additional time period actively and diligently pursuing the cure. If
any default under this Agreement is not cured as described above, the non-defaulting party will,
in additional to any other legal or equitable remedy, have the right to terminate this Agreement
and enforce the defaulting party’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement by an action for
injunction or specific performance.

16. NOTICES. Any notice or communication required under this Agreement must
be in writing, and may be given personally, sent via nationally recognized ovemight carrier
service, or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. If given by registered or
certified mail, the same will be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur oft
(i} actual receipt by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to
be sent; or (ii) three days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly
addressed, with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If personally delivered
or sent via nationally recognized overnight carrier service, a notice will be deemed to have been
given and received on the first to occur of: (i) one business day after being deposited with a
nationally recognized overnight air courier service; or (ii) delivery to the party to whom it is
addressed. Any party hereto may at any time, by giving written notice to the other party hereto
as provided herein designate additional persons to whom notices or communications will be
given, and designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or
communication will be given. Such notices or communications will be given to the parties at

their addresses set forth below:

District: Cathedral Pines Metropolitan District




c/o Walker Schooler District Managers
614 N. Tejon St.

Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903
Attention: Kevin Walker

(719) 447-1777 (phone)
kevin.w@wsdistricts.co

With copy to: Susemihl, McDermott and Cowan, PC
C/O Peter Susemihl
660 Southpointe Cir.
Suite 210
Colorado Springs, CO 80906
psusemihl@smmeclaw.com
(719) 579-6500

Contractor: Mr. John Frerichs
4335 Foxchase Way
Colorado Springs, CO 80908

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement
between the Parties hereto relating to the Services, and sets forth the rights, duties, and
obligations of each to the other as of this date. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or
representations not expressly set forth in this Agreement are of no force and effect. This
Agreement may not be modified except by a writing executed by both the Contractor and the

District.

18.  BINDING AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto.

19. NO WAIVER. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided herein, nor shall the
waiver of any default be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default.

20. GOVERNING LAW / DISPUTES. This Agreement and all claims or controversies
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the
law of the State of Colorado, without regard to conflict of law principles that would result in the
application of any law other than the law of the State of Colorado. Venue for all actions arising
from this Agreement shall be in the District Court in and for the county in which the District is
located. The Parties expressly and irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect
venue of any such action, including, but not limited to, forum non-conveniens or otherwise. At the
District’s request, the Contractor shall carry on its duties and obligations under this Agreement
during any legal proceedings and the District shall continue to pay for the Services performed under
this Agreement until and unless this Agreement is otherwise terminated. In the event that it
becomes necessary for either party to enforce the provisions of this Agreement or to obtain
redress for the breach or violation of any of its provisions, whether by litigation, arbitration or




other proceedings, the prevailing party shall recover from the other party all costs and expenses
associated with such proceedings, including reasonable attorney’s fees. For purposes of this
Agreement, “prevailing party” shall mean the party in whose favor a judgment, decree, or final
order is rendered, either by an arbitrator or the court, after appeal, if any. In the event both
Parties prevail on one or more claims, the prevailing party shall mean the net winner of a dispute,
taking into account the claims pursued, the claims on which the pursuing party was successful,
the amount of money sought, the amount of money awarded, and offsets or counterclaims
pursued (successfully or unsuccessfully) by the other Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a
written offer of compromise made by either Party is not accepted by the other Party within thirty
(30) days after receipt and the Party not accepting such offer fails to obtain a more favorable
judgment, the non-accepting Party shall not be entitled to recover its costs of suit and reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs (even if it is the prevailing party) and shall be obligated to pay the costs
of suit and reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the offering Party. At the District’s
request, the Contractor will consent to being joined in litigation between the District and third
parties, but such consent shall not be construed as an admission of fault or liability. The Contractor
shall not be responsible for delays in the performance of the Services caused by factors beyond its
reasonable control including delays caused by Act of God, accidents, failure of any governmental or
other regulatory authority to act in a timely manner or failure of the District to furnish timely
information or to approve or disapprove of Contractor’s Services in a timely manner.

2]1. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES. In the performance of this Agreement, or in
considering any requested approval, acceptance, or extension of time, the Parties agree that each
will act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or unreasonably
withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, or extension of time required or
requested pursuant to this Agreement.

22. SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET. The District does
not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation
whatsoever. The performance of those obligations of the District pursuant to this Agreement
requiring budgeting and appropriation of funds are subject to annual budgeting and appropriations.
The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that the District’s obligations under this
Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by the
Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement or liability in any ensuing fiscal
year beyond the then-current fiscal year. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or
interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the District, or as creating a multiple-
fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of the District or
statutory debt limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI,
Section 6 of the Constitution of the State of Colorado. No provision of this Agreement shall be
construed to pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of District funds. The District’s
obligations under this Agreement exist subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and shall
remain subject to the same for the entire term of this Agreement.

23. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to
waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be
available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any
other person acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or




available to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et
seq., CR.S.

24. SEVERABILITY. If any covenant, term, condition or provision of this
Agreement shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such covenant, term, condition or provision shall not affect any other
provision contained herein, the intention being that such provisions are severable. In addition,
in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this
Agreement a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that
the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable.

25. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICTARIES. It is expressly understood and agreed that
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to
such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties and nothing contained in this
Agreement shall give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such
Agreement. It is the express intention of the Parties that any person other than Parties receiving
services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only.

26. OPEN RECORDS. The Parties understand that afl material provided or produced
under this Agreement may be subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-202, et seq.,

CRS.

27. TAX EXEMPT STATUS. The District is exempt from Colorado State sales and
use taxes. Accordingly, taxes from which the District is exempt shall not be included in any
invoices submitted to the District. The District shall, upon request, furnish Contractor with a
copy of its certificate of tax exemption. Contractor and subcontractors shall apply to the
Colorado Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Division, for an Exemption Certificate and
purchase the materials tax free. Pursuant to § 39-26-1 14(1)(af(XIX)(A), C.R.S., Contractor and
subcontractors shall be liable for exempt taxes paid due to failure to apply for Exemption
Certificates or for failure to use said certificate.

35.  COUNTERPART EXECUTION. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute
one and the same instrument. Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of
a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories
hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules
of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signature pages follow].

10




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first
above written. By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken
all necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement.

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

PETER SUSEMIHL
Attorneys at Law

General Counsel to the District

DISTRICT:

CATHEDRAL PINES METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado

Officer of the District

CONTRACTOR:

,W:&_S

Ppinted Name: I[:« r:r-er—r:,L_(

Title:




EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES & COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

Snow removal at Cathedral Pines will be provided by the Contractor. Snow removal will occur
whenever more than 4 inches of snow falis at the Lodge at Cathedral Pines or lesser amounts
at the discretion of the Contractor and will commence within 12 hours of such accumulation and
twice daily at the discretion of the Contractor until the event ends.

Snow will be removed from the public streets within the Cathedral Pines development including
the following streets - Foxchase Way, Marble Arch Ct., Farnham Royal Ct., Millhaven PI,
Staffshire Ln., Vessey Rd., Saunderton Grove, Saxton Hollow Rd., Tewksbury Ct., Lauriston PI.,
Winsiow Dr. and Milam Rd. (if the County does not adequately provide service at the
Contractor’s discretion).

Payments will be made in advance of services rendered according to the following schedule —
Payment of $8,000.00 in September for services from September 1 through December 31 of
that calendar year. Payment of $8,000 in January for January1 through May 31 of that calendar

year.

The contract will extend, subject to annual appropriation and other terms of this contract through
May 31, 2021.

Snow removal will occur whenever more than 4 inches of snow falls. Lesser amounts of
snow will be removed at the discretion of the plow driver. With heavier snow falls, the snow will
be removed at least twice daily to ensure the residents are able to traverse the roads of
Cathedral pines. In the event the county does not open Milam road, a pass wiil be made in both
directions to open this road in heavier snow storms.



EXHIBIT B
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

NOTE: All insurance required and provided hereunder shall also comply with the provisions of
Section 11 of the Agreement.

Standard Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance covering all employees
of Contractor involved with the performance of the Services, with policy amounts and
coverage in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Services will be

performed.

2, Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of liability

of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property damage. This
policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations contained

in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or property damage.

Any other insurance commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be performed
pursuant to this Agreement.



3uijanoys

dnoy Jad 0o sH4
mo|d

Jnoy Jad 00T

Bunpaoyg

inoy sad 00'SHS
Mo|d

Jnoy 13d 00°56$

Buijanoys

dnoy s3d 0064
Mo|d

Jnoy Jad pOTS

2)ey AjanoH
[eAowIay MOUS

inoy uad po'sH$

a1e1 Alnoy jessuzn
eale syn|g Joowpeoag
eaJe RIS JOJ 005 ‘TS

00°'s¥S
ajes Alnoy |esauag
B3JY Uopess
B3JE J.|IW|S 10} 001 TS

00'SES 21.1 AlAnoy |elausy
1053y Joowpeoag
ul eaJe ejIwIs J0) 00S ‘TS

inoy 1ad po'sZS

Suiwwiagg

inoy Jad po'SES

Suimowl [euonippe 10y 3121 AlINOH
Yuow Jad gos ‘TS

{sueipan ay3 10y sseuS Supmop)
ajey ApnoH asueuauiely

[EAOLISY Mmousg pue sdueuajuiery adesspuer Joj uosiedwo) 1507 sauld [eipayier)

uewsioj Jnoy Jad oo sps
Joqe| unoy Jad 00'0v$

uersiuyda) dnoy sad po'6ES
uewsioy Jnoy Jad 00°59¢

uewsaJoj Joj unoy Jad 05°8€S

sdjedal jeuonippe 1oy unoy 1ad 05°9Z$
uewa.o4 Jnoy Jad 05'grs

Jaioqeq unoy Jad 05'8z$

inoy Jad sinoy Jaye 00's8S$
Jdnoy 13d 00'59¢

aley Anoy uopesiug

jead ayi jo do)

aulsqui |

§,U0sAGOY

Suidesspuer jleq vy
934 Anuno) ysiy

lopuap



Jojoang

- $ EirAKell
sjusiwon Jajsuel) ajeq uopduoseq
SIY} Junoury

AINNOJJV ANNA INNIATY SanNog

08°2¥¢'s $ WIOL
00691 $ (810272112 SpjouARY uemoy
00'sze $ |8L0Z/2L/2 uosupyly 8|jauoiy
L0GhY $ |eL0z/08/1 ©-9¢SZ2-2926.19 SO JO Juswebeue S1seM
000002 $ [eL0Z/LE/1L 6219 sieBeuep JouIsIq 5100095 E
00°008°L $ |eL0zZ/Le/L €0121 dnoJg Juawsbeuely Usireps oy |
0008€°2C $ [8L02/LE/) L2108 UBMOD 2 JowIagoW |yiwasng
1§°G15°) $ [81L02Z/LL/1L SNOLEA OJ99|3 MBIA UlejUNop
60ZLL $ [8L02/L/2 £2€8 pueqpeo.g uoole4
00°Stl $ [8L02/82/)L 7108102 Buidesspue uos 3 eq
€0°c9Z $ [810z/2/2 vz ABIoug siiH yoeig
91'/61 $ |8L02Z/zZr2 82001525 SadjAeg AUndeg 1 gy

unouwry aje( 9210AU] Auedwion
ANNODJV ANN4 TVIINTD
8L0Z2/ecLe

JoLsIq uejjjodoney sauld jespayien



EXHIBIT B-1
CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE






